
Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda 

March 11, 2019 
6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order              

2. Roll Call 

3. Invocation – Tom Bell, Vestavia Hills Chaplain 

4. Pledge Of Allegiance  

5. Announcements and Guest Recognition 

a. Announcement Of Upcoming Vacancy on Vestavia Hills Board Of Education 

6. City Manager’s Report 

7. Councilors’ Reports 

8. Financial Reports – Melvin Turner, III, Finance Director 

9. Approval of Minutes – February 18, 2019 (Work Session) 

Old Business 

10. Resolution Number 5131 – Annexation – 90 day – 2424 Magnolia Cove; Lot 7, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

11. Resolution Number 5132 – Annexation – 90 day – 2423 Magnolia Cove; Lot 8, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

12. Resolution Number 5133 – Annexation – 90 day – 2419 Magnolia Cove; Lot 9, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Martin S. Cogen, Owner   (public hearing) 

13. Resolution Number 5134 – Annexation – 90 day – 2415 Magnolia Cove; Lot 10, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; John and Lynda Gay, Owner   (public hearing) 

14. Resolution Number 5135 – Annexation – 90 day – 2409 Magnolia Cove; Lot 11, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; David and Tammy Downard, Owner   (public hearing) 

15. Resolution Number 5136 – Annexation – 90 day – 2405 Magnolia Cove; Lot 12, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Thomas and Jane Walker, Owner   (public hearing) 

16. Resolution Number 5137 – Annexation – 90 day – 2401 Magnolia Cove; Lot 13, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

17. Resolution Number 5138 – Annexation – 90 day – 2400 Magnolia Cove; Lot 1, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

18. Resolution Number 5139 – Annexation – 90 day – 2404 Magnolia Cove; Lot 2, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Randel Walker, Owner   (public hearing) 

19. Resolution Number 5140 – Annexation – 90 day – 2408 Magnolia Cove; Lot 3, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; David and Jenice Adcock, Owner   (public hearing) 



20. Resolution Number 5141 – Annexation – 90 day – 2412 Magnolia Cove; Lot 4, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Frank and Phyllis Hamrick, Owner   (public hearing) 

21. Resolution Number 5142 – Annexation – 90 day – 2416 Magnolia Cove; Lot 5, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Kay Watkins, Owner   (public hearing) 

22. Resolution Number 5143 – Annexation – 90 day – 2420 Magnolia Cove; Lot 6, Magnolia 

Cove Estates; Chase Beard, Owner   (public hearing) 

New Business 

23. Resolution Number 5144 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal Property Is 

Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said 

Surplus Property 

24. Resolution Number 5145 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 

Deliver An Agreement With Alabama Department Of Transportation To Construct A 

Turnout To Provide Access To Montgomery Highway At Waldridge Road 

25. Resolution Number 5146 – A Resolution To Amend Resolution Numbers 5120, 3192, 

3337 And 3469 Authorizing The City Manager To Offer Continuing Health Insurance 

Benefits To Employees Electing To Retire 

26. Ordinance Number 2831 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 

Execute And Deliver A Joint Purchasing Agreement For Lawn Maintenance Services 

New Business (Unanimous Consent Requested) 

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

27. Resolution Number 5147 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Expend An 

Amount Not To Exceed $30,000 From The Library Fund 13 Pooled Cash For A Remote 

Locker System For Cahaba Heights And Liberty Park Residents And A Vending Machine 

For The Library’s Makerspace Area With Funding To Be Reimbursed In The Amount Of 

$20,000 By An LSTA Grant     (public hearing) 

28. Ordinance Number 2832 - An Ordinance Amending Ordinance Number 2281 And Section 

8-174 Of The Vestavia Hills Code Of Ordinances Entitled “Fire/Rescue Emergency 

Transport Service”    (public hearing) 

29. Citizen Comments      

30. Executive Session 

31. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
February 18, 2019 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

FEBRUARY 18, 2019 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a regular scheduled work session on this 
in the Executive Conference Room at 6:00 PM, following posting/publication as required 
by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order at 6 PM on February 18, 2019: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Ashley C. Curry 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
      Paul J. Head, Councilor 

George Pierce, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:   Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager  
      Wendy Dickerson, Deputy City Clerk 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 

Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
Cinnamon McCulley, Communications Specialist 
Jason Hardin, Police Captain 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Lori Beth Kearley, Sr. Civil Engineer 
Shane Ware, Police Lieutenant 
Umang Patel, Court Director 

 
 The Mayor called the work session to order.  The Mayor stated that there are traffic 
issues on Caldwell Mill Road and hopes that the outcome tonight will be to see how this 
can be addressed.  He turned the floor over to Jeff Downes. 
 
 Mr. Downes introduced Brian Davis, Christopher Brady, Lori Beth Kearley, Jason 
Hardin, Shane Ware, Umang Patel, Steve Ammons, County Commissioner, and Cal 
Markert, Jefferson County Director of Roads and Transportation.  He explained the 
Caldwell Mill area and the concerns over the traffic flow. Mr. Downes gave a brief 
overview of past efforts to mitigate the residents’ concerns. 
 
 The Mayor asked Mr. Markert the status of the bridge and the County’s perspective 
on speed bumps, rumble strips, and a roundabout. 
 



City Council Minutes 
February 18, 2019 

Page 2 
 

 Mr. Markert stated that the bridge will be replaced with the next two to three years.  
He stated that the County has a policy not to install speed bumps.  He explained that 
neighbors do not, generally, want rumble strips because they are loud.  He also explained 
that roundabouts are very expensive to construct and require buying property. 
 
 Mr. Head asked about the data obtained from the engineers concerning the traffic. 
 
 Mrs. Kearley stated that the data came back at acceptable levels. 
 
 The following people spoke about concerns regarding the heavy trucks driving over 
the bridge and speeders: 
 
 Blake Tyler, 4704 Caldwell Mill Road (County resident) 
 Brooks Souders, 4670 Caldwell Mill Road 
 Troy Duell, 4700 Caldwell Mill Road 
 Jason Springfield, 4723 Bridgewater Road (County resident) 
 Layne Savoie, 4668 Caldwell Mill Road 
 Amy Savoie, 4668 Caldwell Mill Road 
 Keith Sides, 4722 Shady Waters Lane (County resident) 
 
 The Mayor stated that the County and City Engineers would analyze the concerns 
and issues and meet back at the Council Work Session in three months to give an update 
on the status. 
 
 Mr. Downes introduced Kent Marshall, Gresham, Smith and Partners, to give a 
presentation on the updates for the pedestrian bridge. 
 
 Mr. Marshall presented to the Council a slideshow containing the location of the 
bridge, the aesthetics of the bridge and the landscaping. 
 
 Discussion ensued about the aesthetics, signage, lighting and landscaping. 
 
 Mrs. Cook asked for signage on the bridge span to tie into the design of the Wald 
Park entrance. She asked about the landscaping at the base to tie into the bridge design. 
The Council also discussed decorative neon lighting along the span, with changeable 
colors. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained the Simplified Sellers Use Tax (SSUT) to the Mayor and 
Council, including legislation that may occur this session. 
 
 There being no further business, the work session adjourned at 7:55 PM. 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 



City Council Minutes 
February 18, 2019 

Page 3 
 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
Wendy Dickerson 
Deputy City Clerk 



 

 

 

Magnolia Cove Estates 

Supplementary Information 

(Individual information with Resolution) 







Address Ad Valorem City BOE

2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1 $820.38 $232.21 $588.17

2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2 $3,340.33 $945.51 $2,394.82

2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 *currently tax exempt

2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4 $3,785.37 $1,071.48 $2,713.89

2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5 $820.38 $232.21 $588.17

2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6 $820.38 $232.21 $588.17

2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7 $820.38 $232.21 $588.17

2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8 $820.38 $232.21 $588.17

2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9 $3,799.89 $1,075.59 $2,724.30

2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10 $4,190.48 $1,186.15 $3,004.33

2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11 $7,453.11 $2,109.66 $5,343.45

2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12 $4,052.53 $1,147.10 $2,905.43

2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13 $820.38 $232.21 $588.17

Totals: $31,543.99 $8,928.75 $22,615.24

.



City of Vestavia Hills

Tax Calculator

Non Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX RATES
Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access

Portal Descriptor Description

====> 56,500 Appraised Value

TOTAL MARKET

VALUE

20%

Assessment rate (20% for non

homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

11,300 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

BREAKDOWN

232.215 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55

324.88 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

557.09

Total County remits to City for split with

BOE CITY

170.63

Special Local School Assessment

(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

92.66 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

232.215 Annexation Revenue to CITY

CITY (General Fund

portion) (20.55 mills)

588.17 Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC

SCHOOL1 + CITY

(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

820.38 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue

BOE Revenue

2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2 Property Address

====>   $                                                            460,100  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$46,010.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$945.51 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,322.79 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,268.29
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$694.75
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$377.28 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$945.51 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,394.82 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,340.33 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3* Property Address

====>   $                                                            612,400  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$61,240.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,258.48 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,760.65 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$3,019.13
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$924.72
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$502.17 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$1,258.48 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$3,187.54 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$4,446.02 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue ** Property is currently tax exempt**
BOE Revenue



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4 Property Address

====>   $                                                            521,400  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$52,140.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,071.48 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,499.03 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,570.50
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$787.31
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$427.55 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$1,071.48 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,713.89 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,785.36 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue



City of Vestavia Hills

Tax Calculator

Non Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX RATES
Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access

Portal Descriptor Description

====> 56,500 Appraised Value

TOTAL MARKET

VALUE

20%

Assessment rate (20% for non

homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

11,300 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

BREAKDOWN

232.215 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55

324.88 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

557.09

Total County remits to City for split with

BOE CITY

170.63

Special Local School Assessment

(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

92.66 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

232.215 Annexation Revenue to CITY

CITY (General Fund

portion) (20.55 mills)

588.17 Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC

SCHOOL1 + CITY

(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

820.38 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue

BOE Revenue

2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



City of Vestavia Hills

Tax Calculator

Non Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX RATES
Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access

Portal Descriptor Description

====> 56,500 Appraised Value

TOTAL MARKET

VALUE

20%

Assessment rate (20% for non

homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

11,300 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

BREAKDOWN

232.215 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55

324.88 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

557.09

Total County remits to City for split with

BOE CITY

170.63

Special Local School Assessment

(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

92.66 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

232.215 Annexation Revenue to CITY

CITY (General Fund

portion) (20.55 mills)

588.17 Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC

SCHOOL1 + CITY

(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

820.38 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue

BOE Revenue

2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



City of Vestavia Hills

Tax Calculator

Non Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX RATES
Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access

Portal Descriptor Description

====> 56,500 Appraised Value

TOTAL MARKET

VALUE

20%

Assessment rate (20% for non

homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

11,300 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

BREAKDOWN

232.215 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55

324.88 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

557.09

Total County remits to City for split with

BOE CITY

170.63

Special Local School Assessment

(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

92.66 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

232.215 Annexation Revenue to CITY

CITY (General Fund

portion) (20.55 mills)

588.17 Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC

SCHOOL1 + CITY

(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

820.38 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue

BOE Revenue

2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



City of Vestavia Hills

Tax Calculator

Non Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX RATES
Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access

Portal Descriptor Description

====> 56,500 Appraised Value

TOTAL MARKET

VALUE

20%

Assessment rate (20% for non

homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

11,300 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

BREAKDOWN

232.215 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55

324.88 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

557.09

Total County remits to City for split with

BOE CITY

170.63

Special Local School Assessment

(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

92.66 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

232.215 Annexation Revenue to CITY

CITY (General Fund

portion) (20.55 mills)

588.17 Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC

SCHOOL1 + CITY

(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

820.38 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue

BOE Revenue

2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9 Property Address

====>   $                                                            523,400  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$52,340.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,075.59 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,504.78 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,580.36
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$790.33
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$429.19 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$1,075.59 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,724.30 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,799.88 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10 Property Address

====>   $                                                            577,200  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$57,720.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,186.15 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,659.45 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,845.60
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$871.57
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$473.30 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$1,186.15 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$3,004.33 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$4,190.47 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue



City of Vestavia Hills

Tax Calculator

Non Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX RATES
Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access

Portal Descriptor Description

====> 513,300 Appraised Value

TOTAL MARKET

VALUE

20%

Assessment rate (20% for non

homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

102,660 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

BREAKDOWN

2109.663 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55

2,951.48 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

5,061.14

Total County remits to City for split with

BOE CITY

1550.17

Special Local School Assessment

(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

841.81 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

2109.663 Annexation Revenue to CITY

CITY (General Fund

portion) (20.55 mills)

5,343.45 Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC

SCHOOL1 + CITY

(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

7,453.12 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue

BOE Revenue

2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

====>  2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12 Property Address

====>   $                                                            558,200  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$55,820.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor
Notes

$1,147.10 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)

$1,604.83 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,751.93
Total County remits to City for split with 

BOE
CITY

$842.88
SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 

directly to BOE)
SPC SCHOOL1

(15.1 mills rate)

$457.72 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

$1,147.10 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,905.43 Annexation Revenue to BOE
SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 

CITY (BOE portion)
(8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$4,052.53 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue



City of Vestavia Hills

Tax Calculator

Non Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX RATES
Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills
0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access

Portal Descriptor Description

====> 56,500 Appraised Value

TOTAL MARKET

VALUE

20%

Assessment rate (20% for non

homesteaders) EXEMPT CODE

11,300 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

BREAKDOWN

232.215 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 20.55

324.88 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) 28.75

557.09

Total County remits to City for split with

BOE CITY

170.63

Special Local School Assessment

(County gives directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

92.66 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE

232.215 Annexation Revenue to CITY

CITY (General Fund

portion) (20.55 mills)

588.17 Annexation Revenue to BOE

SCHOOL + SPC

SCHOOL1 + CITY

(BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

820.38 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

City Revenue

BOE Revenue

2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



Resolution Number 5131 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5131 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5131 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5131 
Page 2 

 
2424 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 7, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



 

2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



2424 Magnolia Cove Lot 7



Resolution Number 5132 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5132 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5132 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5132 
Page 2 

 
2423 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 8, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



 

2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



2423 Magnolia Cove Lot 8



Resolution Number 5133 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5133 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 12, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5133 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5133 
Page 2 

 
2419 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 9, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Martin Steven Cogen, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



 

2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



2419 Magnolia Cove Lot 9



Resolution Number 5134 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5134 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 13, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5134 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5134 
Page 2 

 
2415 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 10, Magnolia Cove Estates 
John and Lynda Gay, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



 

2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



2415 Magnolia Cove Lot 10



Resolution Number 5135 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5135 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5135 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5135 
Page 2 

 
2409 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 11, Magnolia Cove Estates 
David and Tammy Downard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





 

2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



2409 Magnolia Cove Lot 11



Resolution Number 5136 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5136 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 16, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5136 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5136 
Page 2 

 
2405 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 12, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Thomas and Jane Walker, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



 

2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



2405 Magnolia Cove Lot 12



Resolution Number 5137 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5137 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5137 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5137 
Page 2 

 
2401 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 13, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



 

2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



2401 Magnolia Cove Lot 13



Resolution Number 5138 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5138 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5138 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5138 
Page 2 

 
2400 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 1, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



 

2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



2400 Magnolia Cove Lot 1



Resolution Number 5139 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5139 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5139 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5139 
Page 2 

 
2404 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 2, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Randel Walker, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



 

2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



2404 Magnolia Cove Lot 2



Resolution Number 5140 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5140 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 13, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5140 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5140 
Page 2 

 
2408 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 3, Magnolia Cove Estates 
David C. and Jenice M. Adcock, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



 

2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



2408 Magnolia Cove Lot 3



Resolution Number 5141 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5141 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 13, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5141 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5141 
Page 2 

 
2412 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 4, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Frank and Phyllis Hamrick, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



 

2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



2412 Magnolia Cove Lot 4



Resolution Number 5142 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5142 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5142 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5142 
Page 2 

 
2416 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 5, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Kay Watkins, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



 

2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



2416 Magnolia Cove Lot 5



Resolution Number 5143 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5143 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated November 19, 2018, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 11th day of March, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

15th day of March, 2019. 

 2.  That on the 24th day of June, 2019, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5143 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5143 
Page 2 

 
2420 Magnolia Cove 

Lot 6, Magnolia Cove Estates 
Chase Beard, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



 

2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



2420 Magnolia Cove Lot 6



Resolution Number 5144 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5144 
 
 A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 

PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal property 

detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and 

2. This Resolution Number 5144 shall become effective immediately upon 

adoption and approval. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 11th day of March, 

2019. 

 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Shane Ware
Sent: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 8:50 AM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Cc: Danny Rary; Jason Hardin
Subject: Vehicle for Surplus Declaration - 2005 White Honda Goldwing

Becky, 
 
After speaking with Chief Rary and Chief Hardin, we would like to begin the process of declaring the following vehicle as 
surplus: 
 

2005 White Honda Goldwing motorcycle.  VIN 1HFSC47035A408870.   
 
This vehicle has been stripped of emergency equipment.   
 
Thank you,  
 
 

 
 

Captain Shane Ware 
Patrol Commander 
Vestavia Hills Police Department 
1032 Montgomery Hwy 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
205‐978‐0111 Office 
205‐978‐0140 Desk Sgt. 
205‐823‐1153 Dispatch 
sware@vhal.org  
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5144



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Shane Ware
Sent: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 8:48 AM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Cc: Danny Rary; Jason Hardin
Subject: Vehicle for Surplus Declaration - 2013 Ford Fusion

Good morning Becky, 
 
I spoke to Chief and Deputy Chief this morning and we would like to begin the process of declaring the following vehicle 
as surplus:   
 

2013 Ford Fusion, VIN 3FA6P0G75DR194190 
 
This vehicle has no emergency equipment remaining on it.  This car looks good, but we believe the transmission is bad 
and not worthy of repair.   
 
Thank you,  
 
 

 
 

Captain Shane Ware 
Patrol Commander 
Vestavia Hills Police Department 
1032 Montgomery Hwy 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
205‐978‐0111 Office 
205‐978‐0140 Desk Sgt. 
205‐823‐1153 Dispatch 
sware@vhal.org  
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5144



                                                                                                                                                10/16/18 

 

 

To: Rebecca Leavings 

From: Sgt. Gaston, Officer Wilson 

Re: Surplus City Property 

 

 

      Please request that the City Council deem the following property surplus at the next meeting: 

 

 2013 Chevrolet Tahoe Vin# IGNLC2E06DR346829 

 

Please contact me with any questions or concerns. 

 

 

                                                                 Thanks,   Sgt. Gaston       ext.#1137 

                   Officer Wilson   ext.#1110 

 

                            

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5144



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Brian Davis
Sent: Wednesday, March 06, 2019 1:20 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Subject: FW: Old equipment 

Could we get the following equipment on the agenda for surplus?  We need to get rid of it. 
 
“When a train goes through a tunnel and it gets dark, you don’t throw away the ticket and jump off.  You sit still and 
trust the engineer.” 
Corrie ten Boom 
 
 
Brian C. Davis, Director 
Department of Public Services 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 
  
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Bobby McDaniel  
Sent: Tuesday, March 05, 2019 3:14 PM 
To: Brian Davis <BDavis@vhal.org> 
Subject: Old equipment  
 
05, John Deere Gator 
I.D. # W06X4HD002475 
Asset # 12038 
 
09, Toro Mower Model# 74296 Serial# 310000413 No asset#  
 
08, Toro Mower Model# 74249 Serial# 260002038 Asset# 12068 
 
Thx 
 
 
 
Vestavia Hills Public Services 
B McDaniel 
Cell # 873‐8494 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5144



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5145 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION FOR IMPROVEMENTS IN RIGHTS-OF-WAY AT 
MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY AND WALDRIDGE ROAD 

 
 BE IS RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver an agreement with the 

Alabama Department of Transportation (“ALDOT”) for improvements related to 

modification of existing turnout at Waldridge Road to add right turn lane; addition of new 

Wald Park turnout and associated right turn decel lane and left turn lane into site; 

conversion of existing Board of Education turnout to right-in/right-out; and removal of two 

median crossovers; and 

2. A copy of said agreement is marked as Exhibit A and is attached to and incorporated into 

this Resolution Number 5145 as though written fully therein; 

3. This Resolution Number 5145 shall be effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5145





















Resolution Number 5146 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5146 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION NUMBERS 5120, 
3192, 3337 AND 3469 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
OFFER CONTINUING HEALTH INSURANCE BENEFITS TO 
EMPLOYEES ELECTING TO RETIRE. 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, THAT RESOLUTION NUMBERS 5120, 3192, 

3337, AND 3469 ARE AMENDED IN THEIR ENTIRETY TO READ AS 

FOLLOWS: 

THAT, the City Manager is authorized to offer to eligible City employees 

continuing health insurance benefits until they reach age 65 under the following terms, if 

the eligible employee elects to retire. 

1. ELIGIBILITY.  All currently active City employees (including the Library 

and Parks and Recreation Department) who meet the service retirement 

requirements of the Employees Retirement Systems of Alabama (“ERS”), who 

are age 55 years of age, or older, and who have 25 or more years of service 

(inclusive of accrued sick leave if ERS Tier One employee), or who have at 

least 10 years of service and have reached the age of 60 or older are eligible, 

provided that such employee gives 30 days written notice of their election to 

retire prior to their effective date of retirement. 

2. INSURANCE COVERAGE.  The eligible employees electing to retire must 

be currently enrolled in the City’s health plan. 

The retiring employee’s coverage will continue as if the retiree were an active 

employee until that retiree reaches age 65 or becomes eligible for Medicare benefits, 

whichever comes first.  The coverage that will be provided by the City to the eligible retiree 

pursuant to this Resolution is that same coverage which is otherwise available to other 

active employees of the City.  It is agreed and understood that the eligible employee 

electing to retire will not be treated differently than any other active employee and will 

receive the insurance benefits as any other active employee of the City, subject to the 

maximum premium cost provided in paragraph 3 below. 



Resolution Number 5146 
Page 2 

 

3. PREMIUM COST.  Pursuant to this Resolution the City will pay a health 

insurance benefit beginning at a minimum benefit of at least $240.00, or an 

amount equal to the calculation of 2.5% times the number of years of service 

with the City of Vestavia Hills and Cahaba Heights Fire District (as 

incorporated as a part of the City of Vestavia Hills), whichever is greater.  The 

maximum benefit shall not exceed 87.5% at a maximum of $1,000.00 for those 

retiring eligible employees who are presently enrolled under the City’s health 

insurance plan for single or family coverage and those individuals who 

previously retired under this plan. 

4. RETIREMENT PLAN.  The eligible employees electing to retire pursuant to 

this Resolution must be at the time of retirement, qualified and eligible to retire 

under The Employee’s Retirement System of Alabama Service Retirement Plan 

and must be currently enrolled in The Employee’s Retirement System of 

Alabama at the time of notice of such election as required by this Resolution.  

The City makes no representation as to the eligibility of any employee as relates 

to service retirement benefits from the Retirement Plan.  However, it is a 

specific condition that the employee electing to retire pursuant to this 

Resolution must be eligible to service retire pursuant to the laws of the State of 

Alabama and in particular with the terms and conditions of The Employee’s 

Retirement System of Alabama. 

5. EFFECTIVE DATE:  This resolution shall become effective the 12th day of 

March, 2019. 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2831 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2831 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE AND DELIVER A JOINT PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
WITH THE VESTAVIA HILLS BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR LAWN 
MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
 WHEREAS, in May 2017, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“City”) advertised 

inviting contractors to submit bids for lawn maintenance services; and 

 WHEREAS, the City determined that the bid submitted by Specialty Turf Supply, Inc., 

was the lowest, responsible bid; and 

 WHEREAS, on September 18, 2017, the City Council approved and adopted Resolution 

Number 4979 accepting the bid and authorized the execution and delivery of a three-year contract 

beginning October 1, 2017 and ending on September 30, 2020; and 

 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Board of Education is desirous in entering a Joint 

Purchasing Agreement in order to do business with Specialty Turf Supply, Inc.; and 

 WHEREAS, based upon the advice of the City Attorney, upon recommendation and 

approval from the Board of Education, that the City Council authorize the Mayor and the City 

Manager to execute and deliver a Joint Purchasing Agreement with the Vestavia Hills Board of 

Education in order to allow the Board of Education to share in the purchasing agreement between 

the City and Specialty Turf Supply, Inc., for lawn maintenance services through September 30, 

2020; and 

 WHEREAS, a copy of said Joint Purchasing Agreement is attached to and incorporated 

into this Ordinance Number 2831 as though written fully therein. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Following approval of the Vestavia Hills Board of Education, the Mayor and City Manager 

are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a Joint Purchasing Agreement with the 

Vestavia Hills Board of Education as detailed in the attached Exhibit A; and 

2. A copy of said agreement shall be filed in the Office of the City Clerk; and 

3. This Ordinance Number 2831 shall become effective immediately upon posting/publishing 

pursuant to Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 2831 
Page 2 

 
DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 11th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



Exhibit - Ordinance No. 2831



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5147 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXPEND 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $30,000 FROM THE LIBRARY FUND 13 
POOLED CASH FOR A REMOTE LOCKER SYSTEM FOR CAHABA 
HEIGHTS AND LIBERTY PARK RESIDENTS AND A VENDING 
MACHINE FOR THE LIBRARY’S MAKERSPACE AREA WITH 
FUNDING TO BE REIMBURSED IN THE AMOUNT OF $20,000 BY AN 
LSTA GRANT 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to expend an amount not to exceed $30,000 from 

the Library Fund 13 Pooled Cash Account for the purchase of a remote locker system for 

Cahaba Heights and Liberty Park residents and a vending machine for the Library’s 

Makerspace area; and 

2. Reimbursement to the Pooled Cash Account in the amount of $20,000 of this expenditure 

shall be derived from a LSTA grant which was awarded to the Vestavia Hills Library in 

the Forest in November 2018; and 

3. This Resolution Number 5147 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 18th day of March, 2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5147



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5147



Ordinance Number 2832 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2832 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NUMBER 2281 – AN 
ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 8-174, VESTAVIA HILLS 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, REPUBLISHED 2012; ENTITLED 
FIRE/RESCUE EMERGENCY TRANSPORT SERVICE 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. Ordinance Number 2281 Section 8-174 entitled “Fire/Rescue Emergency 
Transport Service” of the Vestavia Hills Code of Ordinances, republished 2013, shall 
be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 
 

“SECTION 8-174 – FIRE/RESCUE EMERGENCY TRANSPORT SERVICE 
 
After the effective date hereof, the Vestavia Hills Fire Department shall be the 
primary responder to all 9-1-1 calls of a medical or rescue nature. 

 
A. The Vestavia Hills Fire Department will determine the Patient Category of 

all individuals at the time of response based upon medical protocols.  The 
Fire Department Incident Commander will determine if transportation is to 
be provided by private ambulance or by the Vestavia Hills Fire Department 
based on Fire Department protocol. 

 
B. The Vestavia Hills Fire Department shall not refuse transport of any patient 

requiring ALS/Emergency treatment to the emergency department or labor 
and delivery department of Brookwood Medical Center, Brookwood 
Baptist Medical Center Freestanding, St. Vincent, University Hospital, 
UAB West, UAB Medical West Freestanding Hoover, Veterans-
Birmingham, Children’s Hospital, St. Vincent-East, BMC-Princeton, 
BMC-Shelby, Callahan Eye Foundation, UAB-Main, UAB-South 
Highlands, Grandview, and shall provide emergency medical treatment and 
transportation without regard to the patient’s ability to pay. 

 
C. The following Fire/Rescue ALS/Emergency Transport fee shall be collected 

by an outside billing agency appointed by the Mayor and City Council.  The 
fee structure shall be reviewed on an annual basis by the Mayor and City 
Council and the Mayor and Council shall call for an annual audit of the 
billing agency. 

 
Vestavia Hills Fire Department Emergency Medical Service Transport 
Fee shall be based upon services provided, detailed as follows:   
 

1. Eighteen dollars and twenty nine cents ($18.29) per mile 
traveled for transport of patient; plus 



Ordinance Number 2832 
Page 2 

 

a. ALS – Emergency -   $664.46; or 
b. BLS – Emergency:  $559.55; or 
c. ALS2 – Comprehensive: $961.73; and 

2. Itemized supply charges (billable only to insurance companies 
including Medicaid and Medicare) detailed as follows: 

a. ALS disposables:   $100 
b. BLS Disposables:  $   60 
c. Oxygen:   $   50 
d. IV Supplies:   $   50 

 
D. The Fire/Rescue Emergency Transport Vehicle may transport any patient 

deemed appropriate by the Fire/medic and/or On-Line Medical Control, 
regardless of the patient’s transport category.  .” 

 
SECTION II.  This Ordinance Number 2832 shall become effective upon adoption, 

approval and posting/publication as required by Alabama law. 

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 18th day of March, 

2019. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashely C. Curry  
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2832 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca H. Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance Number 2832 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 18th day of March, 2019, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia Hills 
New Merkel House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2019. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 


	2019_0311CC_A
	2019_0218_CC_work session
	Resolution 5131
	Resolution 5132
	Resolution 5133
	Resolution 5134
	Resolution 5135
	Resolution 5136
	Resolution 5137
	Resolution 5138
	Resolution 5139
	Resolution 5140
	Resolution 5141
	Resolution 5142
	Resolution 5143
	Resolution 5144
	Resolution 5145
	Resolution 5146
	Ordinance 2831
	Resolution 5147
	Ordinance 2832



